


SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, JANUARY 28, 2019 

 
The special Sikeston City Council meeting of January 28, 2019 was called to order at 11:30 
a.m. in the City Council Chambers, located at 105 East Center, Sikeston.  Present at the 
meeting were: Mayor Steven Burch and Councilmen Brian Self, Gerald Settles, Mary White-
Ross, Karen Evans, Ryan Merideth and Jon Gilmore.  Staff in attendance were: City Manager 
Jonathan Douglass, City Counselor Chuck Leible, City Clerk Carroll Couch, City Treasurer 
Karen Bailey, Public Safety Director Mike Williams, Assistant Public Safety Director James 
McMillen, Public Works Director Jay Lancaster, Street Superintendent Brian Dial, Street 
Supervisor Darren Martin, Parks Director Dustin Care, Code Enforcement Supervisor Lorenzo 
Ware, Code Enforcement Officer Bruce Copeland, Lt. Ryan Smith and Det. Ben Quick. 
 
ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
1st & 2nd Reading, Emergency Bill #6129, Comprehensive Plan Amendment for South 
Industrial Park 
 
Councilman Self moved for the first reading of Bill Number 6129.  The motion was seconded by 
Councilman Merideth and the following vote recorded: 

 
Gilmore Aye, Merideth Aye, Self Aye, Settles Aye, Evans Aye, 

White-Ross Aye, and Burch Aye, thereby being passed. 
 
Counselor Leible presented Bill Number 6129 for reading, an emergency bill as approved shall 
become Ordinance Number 6129 amending the future land use map of the Sikeston 
Comprehensive Plan for Development (1974) to designate certain tracts of land as Heavy 
Industrial Use. 
 
The City of Sikeston owns and has annexed 265.32 acres of land on the south side of Sikeston 
for development of the South Industrial Park.  To make the property eligible for inclusion in the 
Missouri Department of Economic Development’s Certified Sites Program, it must be included in 
the City’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan. 
 
This bill is presented as an emergency measure in order to accommodate the timetable for 
inclusion of the site in the Missouri Certified Sites program. 
 
Councilman Gilmore moved for the second reading of Bill Number 6129.  The motion was 
seconded by Councilwoman Evans and the following vote recorded: 

 
Gilmore Aye, Merideth Aye, Self Aye, Settles Aye, Evans Aye, 

White-Ross Aye, and Burch Aye, thereby being passed. 
 
Counselor Leible presented the bill for a second reading. 
 
BILL NUMBER 6129                           ORDINANCE NUMBER 6129 
 
THIS EMERGENCY BILL AS APPROVED SHALL BECOME ORDINANCE NUMBER 6129 
AMENDING THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP OF THE SIKESTON COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
FOR DEVELOPMENT (1974) TO DESIGNATE CERTAIN TRACTS OF LAND AS HEAVY 
INDUSTRIAL USE. 



JANUARY 28, 2019 PAGE 2 CITY COUNCIL MINUTES   

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIKESTON, MISSOURI, AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION I:   This Ordinance shall not be codified in the City Municipal Code. 
 
SECTION II: The Planning & Zoning Commission met on January 15, 2019, and voted to 
recommend to the City Council an amendment of the future land use map of the Sikeston 
Comprehensive Plan for Development (1974) by adding Exhibit “A” for Heavy Industrial Use. 
 
SECTION III. The City Council finds that amending certain tracts of land for the future land use 
map of the Sikeston Comprehensive Plan for Development (1974) would be consistent with the 
actual development of the City and in the best interest of its citizens. 
 
SECTION IV. The Future Land Use Map of the Sikeston Comprehensive Plan for Development 
(1974) is hereby amended to designate as Heavy Industrial the real estate described on Exhibit 
“A” which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference. 
 
SECTION V. This bill is presented as an emergency measure in order to accommodate the 
timetable for inclusion of the site in the Missouri Certified Sites program. 
 
SECTION VI: General Repealer Section:  Any other ordinance or parts thereof inconsistent 
herewith, are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION VII. Severability:  Should any part or parts of this Ordinance be found or held to be 
invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining part or parts shall by severable and 
continue in full force and effect. 
 
SECTION VIII: Record of Passage: 
 
A.   Bill Number 6129 was introduced and read the first time this 28th day of January, 2019. 
 
B.  Bill Number 6129 was read the second time and discussed on this 28th day of January, 
2019.  Councilman Gilmore moved to approve Bill Number 6129.  The motion was seconded by 
Councilman Merideth and the following roll call vote recorded: 
 

Gilmore Aye, Merideth Aye, Self Aye, Settles Aye, Evans Aye,   
White-Ross Aye, and Burch Aye, thereby being passed.  

 
C.  Ordinance 6129 shall be in full force and effect upon its passage. 
 
1st & 2nd Reading, Emergency Bill #6130, Rezoning South Industrial Park 
 
Councilwoman White-Ross moved for the first reading of Bill Number 6130.  The motion was 
seconded by Councilman Merideth and the following vote recorded: 
 

Gilmore Aye, Merideth Aye, Self Aye, Settles Aye, Evans Aye,   
White-Ross Aye, and Burch Aye, thereby being passed. 

  
Counselor Leible presented Bill Number 6130 for reading, this emergency bill as approved shall 
become Ordinance Number 6130 providing for the rezoning from unzoned to Heavy Industrial 



JANUARY 28, 2019 PAGE 3 CITY COUNCIL MINUTES   

“IH” the following described real estate to-wit:  Contiguous tracts of land which together consist 
of approximately 265.32 acres and are located generally west of U.S. Highway 61, north of 
County Road 824 and east of the Burlington Northern-Santa Fe Railroad in the City of Sikeston, 
New Madrid County, Missouri. 
 
The City owns and has annexed land on the south side of Sikeston for development of the 
South Industrial Park.  Zoning of the property to “IH” Heavy Industrial is required to make the 
property eligible for inclusion in the Missouri Department of Economic Development’s Certified 
Sites Program. 
 
This bill is presented as an emergency measure in order to accommodate the timetable for 
inclusion of the site in the Missouri Certified Sites Program. 
 
Councilman Self moved for the second reading of Bill Number 6130.  The motion was seconded 
by Councilman Merideth and the following vote recorded: 

 
Gilmore Aye, Merideth Aye, Self Aye, Settles Aye, Evans Aye, 

White-Ross Aye, and Burch Aye, thereby being passed. 
 
Counselor Leible presented the bill for a second reading. 
 
BILL NUMBER 6130                                     ORDINANCE NUMBER 6130 
 
THIS EMERGENCY BILL AS APPROVED SHALL BECOME ORDINANCE NUMBER 6130 
PROVIDING FOR THE REZONING FROM UNZONED TO HEAVY INDUSTIRIAL ‘IH’ THE 
FOLLOWING DESCRIBED REAL ESTATE TO-WIT:  CONTIGUOUS TRACTS OF LAND 
WHICH TOGETHER CONSIST OF APPROXIMATELY 265.32 ACRES AND ARE LOCATED 
GENERALLY WEST OF U.S. HIGHWAY 61, NORTH OF COUNTY ROAD 824 AND EAST OF 
THE BURLINGTON NORTHERN-SANTA FE RAILROAD IN THE CITY OF SIKESTON, NEW 
MADRID COUNTY, MISSOURI.  
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIKESTON, MISSOURI, AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION I: This Ordinance shall not be codified in the City Municipal Code. 
 
SECTION II: The Planning & Zoning Commission met on January 15, 2019, and voted to 
approve the rezoning from Unzoned to Heavy Industrial “IH” the following described real estate 
to-wit:  Contiguous tracts of land, which together consist of approximately 265.32 acres and are 
located generally west of U.S. Highway 61, north of County Road 824, east of the Burlington 
Northern-Santa Fe Railroad in the City of Sikeston, New Madrid County, Missouri. 
 
SECTION III.  Legal descriptions of said real estate are marked as Exhibit “A” attached hereto 
and incorporated by reference. 
 
SECTION IV.  The above tracts of land are hereby rezoned from Unzoned to Heavy Industrial 
“IH”. 
 
SECTION V.  This bill is presented as an emergency measure in order to accommodate the 
timetable for inclusion of the site in the Missouri Certified Sites program. 
 



JANUARY 28, 2019 PAGE 4 CITY COUNCIL MINUTES   

SECTION VI:   General Repealer Section:  Any other ordinance or parts thereof inconsistent 
herewith, are hereby repealed. 
SECTION VII.    Severability:  Should any part or parts of this Ordinance be found or held to be 
invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining part or parts shall by severable and 
continue in full force and effect. 
 
SECTION VIII:   Record of Passage: 
 
A.   Bill Number 6130 was introduced and read the first time this 28th day of January, 2019. 
 
B.   Bill Number 6130 was read the second time and discussed on this 28th day of January, 
2019.  Councilman Settles moved to approve Bill Number 6130.  The motion was seconded by 
Councilwoman Evans and the following roll call vote recorded: 
 

    Gilmore Aye, Merideth Aye, Self Aye, Settles Aye, Evans Aye, 
White-Ross Aye, and Burch Aye, thereby being passed. 

 
C.  Ordinance Number 6130 shall be in full force and effect upon its passage. 
 
1st Reading, Bill #6131, Rezone Properties Located in Sunset & Lincoln Subdivisions from “IL” 
Light Industrial to “C3” Highway Commercial 
 
Councilman Merideth moved for the first reading of Bill Number 6131.  The motion was 
seconded by Councilman Settles and the following vote recorded: 
 

Gilmore Aye, Merideth Aye, Self Aye, Settles Aye, Evans Aye,   
White-Ross Aye, and Burch Aye, thereby being passed. 

  
Counselor Leible presented Bill Number 6131 for reading.  This bill as approved shall become 
Ordinance Number 6131, providing for the rezoning from Light Industrial “IL” to Highway 

Commercial “C3” the following described real estate to-wit:  LOTS 1&2 BLK 2, LOT A 
REPLAT OF LOTS 3 THRU 5 BLK 2, LOT B REPLAT OF LOTS 3 THRU 5 BLK2, LOT 
6 BLK 2, LOT 7 BLK 2, LOT 8 BLK 2, LOTS 9-11 BLK 2, LOT 1 BLK 3, LOT 2 BLK 3, 
LOT A REPLAT LOTS 3 &4 BLK, LOT 5 BLK 3, LOT 6 BLK 3, LOT 7 BLK 3, LOT 8 BLK 
3, LOTS 9 & 10 BLK 3, LOT 11 BLK 3, LOTS 12 & 13 BLK 3, LOTS 1 THRU 3 & LOT 
16 BLK 4, LOT 15 BLK 4, LOTS 1-3 BLK 8, LOT 4 BLK 8, LOT 5 BLK 8, OF SUNSET 
ADDN TO SIKESTON AND LOTS 1 THRU 3, LOT 4, LOT 5, LOT 6 OF LINCOLN 
SUBDIVISION, AND ALL OF O.B. 35 SIKESTON, in the City of Sikeston, Scott County, 
Missouri. 
 
1st Reading, Bill #6132, Authorization to Execute Contract with Missouri Highways & 
Transportation Commission for Construction of Sidewalk along N. West Street from Salcedo 
Road to Wakefield Avenue 
 
Councilman Gilmore moved for the first reading of Bill Number 6132.  The motion was seconded 
by Councilman Self and the following vote recorded: 
 

Gilmore Aye, Merideth Aye, Self Aye, Settles Aye, Evans Aye,   
White-Ross Aye, and Burch Aye, thereby being passed. 

 



JANUARY 28, 2019 PAGE 5 CITY COUNCIL MINUTES   

Counselor Leible presented Bill Number 6132 for reading.  This bill as approved shall become 
Ordinance Number 6132, authorizing the Mayor to execute a contract between the City of 
Sikeston, Missouri and the Missouri Highways & Transportation Commission for TAP Project 
#5807(002) to construct a sidewalk along North West Street from Salcedo Road to Wakefield 
Avenue. 
 
Seventy-five percent of the funding for this project will come from MoDOT.  This agreement 
outlines the duties and responsibilities of the respective parties during the design and 
construction phase of the project. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business before the City Council, Councilman Merideth moved to 
adjourn.  The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Evans and the following roll call vote was 
recorded: 
 

Gilmore Aye, Merideth Aye, Self Aye, Settles Aye, Evans Aye,   
White-Ross Aye, and Burch Aye, thereby being passed. 

  
  
   APPROVED: 

 
 
                        

     STEVEN BURCH, MAYOR   
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  
CARROLL L. COUCH, CITY CLERK 
 
 
 
SEAL: 



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
FEBRUARY 4, 2019 

 
The regular Sikeston City Council meeting of February 4, 2019 was called to order at 5:00 p.m. 
in the City Council Chambers, located at 105 East Center, Sikeston.  Present at the meeting 
were: Mayor Steven Burch and Councilmen Brian Self, Karen Evans, Mary White-Ross, Gerald 
Settles, Jon Gilmore and Ryan Merideth.  Staff in attendance were: City Manager Jonathan 
Douglass, City Counselor Chuck Leible, City Clerk Carroll Couch, City Treasurer Karen Bailey, 
Public Safety Director Mike Williams, Assistant Public Safety Director James McMillen, Public 
Works Director Jay Lancaster, Street Superintendent Brian Dial, Street Supervisor Darren 
Martin, Park Supervisor Dustin Care, Code Enforcement Supervisor Lorenzo Ware, Lt. Ryan 
Smith, Code Enforcement Officers Bruce Copeland and Andy Barnes. 
 
APPROVAL OF CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
 
City Council minutes of December 3 and December 20, 2018 were presented for approval.  
Councilman Gilmore moved to approve the minutes as presented.  Councilman Merideth 
seconded the motion and the following roll call vote was recorded: 
 

Gilmore Aye, Merideth Aye, Self Aye, Settles Aye, Evans Aye,   
White-Ross Aye, and Burch Aye, thereby being passed. 

 
ACCEPTANCE OF BOARD AND COMMISSION MINUTES 
 
None were presented. 
 
ADVISORY BOARD COUNCIL LIAISON REPORTS 
 
No reports were presented. 
 
ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
2nd Reading & Consideration, Bill #6131, Rezone Properties Located in Sunset & Lincoln 
Subdivisions from “IL” Light Industrial to “C3” Highway Commercial 
 
Councilman Self moved for the second reading of Bill Number 6131.  The motion was seconded 
by Councilwoman Evans and the following vote recorded: 
 

Gilmore Aye, Merideth Aye, Self Aye, Settles Aye, Evans Aye, 
White-Ross Aye, and Burch Aye, thereby being passed.  

 
Counselor Leible presented the bill for reading. 
 
BILL Number 6131                                                            ORDINANCE Number 6131 
 
THIS BILL AS APPROVED SHALL BECOME ORDINANCE NUMBER 6131 PROVIDING FOR 
THE REZONING FROM LIGHT INDUSTRIAL “IL” TO HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL “C-3” THE 
FOLLOWING DESCRIBED REAL ESTATE TO-WIT: LOTS 1&2 BLK 2, LOT A REPLAT OF 
LOTS 3 THRU 5 BLK 2, LOT B REPLAT OF LOTS 3 THRU 5 BLK2, LOT 6 BLK 2, LOT 7 BLK 
2, LOT 8 BLK 2, LOTS 9-11 BLK 2, LOT 1 BLK 3, LOT 2 BLK 3, LOT A REPLAT LOTS 3 &4 
BLK, LOT 5 BLK 3, LOT 6 BLK 3, LOT 7 BLK 3, LOT 8 BLK 3, LOTS 9 & 10 BLK 3, LOT 11 



FEBRUARY 4, 2019 PAGE 2 CITY COUNCIL MINUTES   

BLK 3, LOTS 12 & 13 BLK 3, LOTS 1 THRU 3 & LOT 16 BLK 4, LOT 15 BLK 4, LOTS 1-3 BLK 
8, LOT 4 BLK 8, LOT 5 BLK 8, OF SUNSET ADDN TO SIKESTON AND LOTS 1 THRU 3, LOT 
4, LOT 5, LOT 6 OF LINCOLN SUBDIVISION, AND ALL OF O.B. 35 SIKESTON, IN THE CITY 
OF SIKESTON, SCOTT COUNTY, MISSOURI. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIKESTON, MISSOURI AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION I:  This Ordinance shall not be codified in the City Municipal Code. 
 
SECTION II: The Planning and Zoning Commission met on January 15, 2019 and voted to 
approve the rezoning from Light Industrial “IL” to Highway Commercial “C-3” the following 
described real estate to-wit: LOTS 1&2 BLK 2, LOT A REPLAT OF LOTS 3 THRU 5 BLK 2, 
LOT B REPLAT OF LOTS 3 THRU 5 BLK2, LOT 6 BLK 2, LOT 7 BLK 2, LOT 8 BLK 2, LOTS 9-
11 BLK 2, LOT 1 BLK 3, LOT 2 BLK 3, LOT A REPLAT LOTS 3 &4 BLK, LOT 5 BLK 3, LOT 6 
BLK 3, LOT 7 BLK 3, LOT 8 BLK 3, LOTS 9 & 10 BLK 3, LOT 11 BLK 3, LOTS 12 & 13 BLK 3, 
LOTS 1 THRU 3 & LOT 16 BLK 4, LOT 15 BLK 4, LOTS 1-3 BLK 8, LOT 4 BLK 8, LOT 5 BLK 
8, OF SUNSET ADDN TO SIKESTON AND LOTS 1 THRU 3, LOT 4, LOT 5, LOT 6 OF 
LINCOLN SUBDIVISION, AND ALL OF O.B. 35 SIKESTON, IN THE CITY OF SIKESTON, 
SCOTT COUNTY, MISSOURI.  
 
SECTION III: A plat of said real estate is marked as Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 
incorporated by reference. 
 
SECTION IV:  The above tract of land is hereby rezoned from “IL” Light Industrial to “C-3” 
Highway Commercial. 
 
SECTION V:  General Repealer Section: Any other ordinance or parts thereof inconsistent 
herewith, are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION VI:  Severability: Should any part or parts of this ordinance be found or held to be 
invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining part or parts shall be severable 
and shall continue in full force and effect. 

 
SECTION VII:  Record of Passage: 
 
A. Bill Number 6131 was introduced and read the first time this 28th day of January, 2019. 
 
B. Bill Number 6131 was read the second time and discussed this 4th day of February 2019.  

Following discussion, Councilman Settles moved to approve Bill Number 6131.  The motion 
was seconded by Councilman Self, discussed and the following roll call vote was recorded: 

 
Gilmore Aye, Merideth Aye, Self Aye, Settles Aye, Evans Aye, 

White-Ross Aye, and Burch Aye, thereby being passed. 
 
C. Ordinance 6131 shall be in full force and effect from and after March 6, 2019.  
 
2ND Reading, Bill #6132, Authorization to Execute Contract with Missouri Highways & 
Transportation Commission for Construction of Sidewalk along N. West Street from Salcedo 
Road to Wakefield Avenue 
 



FEBRUARY 4, 2019 PAGE 3 CITY COUNCIL MINUTES   

Councilwoman White-Ross moved for the second reading of Bill Number 6132.  The motion was 
seconded by Councilman Merideth and the following vote recorded: 
 

Gilmore Aye, Merideth Aye, Self Aye, Settles Aye, Evans Aye, 
White-Ross Aye, and Burch Aye, thereby being passed.  

 
Counselor Leible presented the bill for reading.   
 
Bill No. 6132                                                                Ordinance No.  6132 
 
THIS BILL AS APPROVED SHALL BECOME ORDINANCE NUMBER 6132 AUTHORIZING 
THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE CITY OF SIKESTON, MISSOURI 
AND THE MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION FOR TAP 
PROJECT #5807(002) TO CONSTRUCT A SIDEWALK ALONG NORTH WEST STREET 
FROM SALCEDO ROAD TO WAKEFIELD AVENUE. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIKESTON, 
MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION I:  This Ordinance shall not be codified in the City Municipal Code. 

 
SECTION II:  That the Agreement set forth on “Exhibit A” sets forth the various responsibilities 
and liabilities of the parties regarding TAP Project #5807 (002).  
 
SECTION III:  The Mayor and such other officials as may be necessary are hereby authorized, 
empowered and directed to execute any documents necessary and proper to effectuate the 
same and specifically “Exhibit A” which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference. 

 
SECTION IV:  General Repealer Section.  Any ordinance or parts thereof inconsistent herewith 
are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION V:  Severability.  Should any part or parts of this ordinance be found or held to be 
invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining part or parts shall be severable and 
shall continue in full force and effect. 
 
SECTION VI:  Record of Passage:   
 

A. Bill Number 6132 was introduced and read the first time this 28th day of January, 2019. 
 
B. Bill Number 6132 was read the second time and discussed this 4th day of February 2019.  

Following discussion, Councilman Settles moved to approve Bill Number 6132.  The motion 
was seconded by Councilman Self, discussed and the following roll call vote was recorded: 

  
Gilmore Aye, Merideth Aye, Self Aye, Settles Aye, Evans Aye, 

White-Ross Aye, and Burch Aye, thereby being passed. 
 
C. Ordinance 6132 shall be in full force and effect from and after March 6, 2019.  
 
 
 
 



FEBRUARY 4, 2019 PAGE 4 CITY COUNCIL MINUTES   

Receive Annual Financial Audit 
 
City Manager Douglass presented the FY18 Financial Audit Report.  Every year, the city 
undergoes an independent audit of its financial statements by a certified public accountant. The 
audit of the Fiscal Year 2018 financials has been completed by Bucher, Essner and Miles, 
L.L.C. and is available for review by the City Council and the public. 
 
The auditor’s report expresses the opinion that the city’s financial statements “present fairly, in 
all material respects, the respective financial position” of the city’s funds (see p.2). The audit 
“did not identify any deficiencies in internal controls that we consider to be material 
weaknesses” (p.114). The audit also notes “no transactions entered into by the City of Sikeston 
during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus,” (cover letter). 
 
Councilman Merideth moved to receive the FY2018 Audit Report.  The motion was seconded by 
Councilman Gilmore and the following vote recorded: 
 

Gilmore Aye, Merideth Aye, Self Aye, Settles Aye, Evans Aye, 
White-Ross Aye, and Burch Aye, thereby being passed.  

 
Other Items 
 
Council discussed moving their work sessions back to 7:30 a.m. 
 
Additional Ballfield Lighting at Complex – Change Order  
 
On September 10, 2018 Council approved the lighting project at the Complex to MUSCO to 
update the control boxes in the concession stands in the amount of $34,000.  Additional work is 
needed on two remaining fields totaling $17,500.  Staff seeks approval for a change order to the 
MUSCO contract in the amount of $17,500 to complete this project. 
 
Councilman Self moved to approve the change order to MUSCO in the amount of $17,500.  The 
motion was seconded by Councilman Gilmore and the following vote recorded: 
 

Gilmore Aye, Merideth Aye, Self Aye, Settles Aye, Evans Aye, 
White-Ross Aye, and Burch Aye, thereby being passed. 

 
Representatives from BRIDGE Community Services addressed a few issues: 
     Inquired about who is responsible for the back alleyway of Lucky’s Convenience Store 
     Asked could street repairs on Malone extend to the parking lot of T&L Convenience Store 
     Asked about requirements needed for This-n-That to offer booths to people to do yard sales   
 
Louie Griffin spoke about a few complaints that he had with the City. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business before the City Council, Councilman Settles moved to adjourn.  
The motion was seconded by Councilman Merideth and the following roll call vote was 
recorded: 
 

Gilmore Aye, Merideth Aye, Self Aye, Settles Aye, Evans Aye, 
White-Ross Aye, and Burch Aye, thereby being passed. 



FEBRUARY 4, 2019 PAGE 5 CITY COUNCIL MINUTES   

    APPROVED: 
 
 
 

                                  
     STEVEN BURCH, MAYOR   

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
CARROLL L. COUCH, CITY CLERK 
 
 
 
SEAL: 

















LAND CLEARANCE FOR REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

CITY OF SIKESTON 

MEETING 

Monday, November 19, 2018 

11:30 a.m. 

 

Council Chambers 

105 East Center Street 

Sikeston, Missouri 

 

MEETING MINUTES 

 

  

     I.   MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 

 

     Dan Marshall called the meeting to order at 11:43 a.m. 

        

          II.    ROLL CALL 

   

Members Attending:   Michael Harris, John Leible, and Dan Marshall  

Council Liaison: Absent 

   Staff Attending: Angie Keller, Jay Lancaster, and Jonathan Douglass   

   Guest Attending: David Crader, Edie Bartlett - Crader Law Firm 

       

 III.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

         

Leible made a motion to approve the minutes from the meeting of September 17, 2018 as 

submitted.  Harris seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

       IV.   BILLS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

 

      Harris made the motion to approve the bills as follows: 

 

       A. David Crader Law Firm-$2,255.00 

      B. Dexter Bar B Que- $130.24 

      C. Mitchell Insurance (Director’s & Officers) - $1,728.00 (pd 11/8/18) 

      D. United Fire Group (Commercial Liability) - $2,914.00 (pd 11/8/18) 

      E. Worley’s Tree Service- $1,250.00 

      F. Scott County Real Estate Taxes- $107.36 

                     

            Leible seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

        

   V.   LCRA BUSINESS: 

 

  A. David Crader informed the Board of an offer to purchase 301 and 309 Prosperity and 

302, 308, 310, 313, 314, 319, 322, 325, and 326 Kendall. Harris made a Motion to sell the properties to 

Agape Love Church, for $10,000.00 as is and Agape Love Church (Ricky Rodgers) is to pay all title and 



closing fees; with Dan Marshall, as Chairman being authorized to execute all closing documents on behalf 

of the LCRA. Leible seconded the Motion. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

B. David Crader informed the Board of an offer to purchase 412 Dorothy. Harris made a Motion to sell 

the property to Mr. Tony Gibbs and Mrs. Regina Gibbs, for $500.00 as is and Mr. and Mrs. Gibbs are to 

pay all title and closing fees; with Dan Marshall, as Chairman being authorized to execute all closing 

documents on behalf of the LCRA. Leible seconded the Motion. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

C. Dan Marshall informed the Board that First State Bank & Trust Company, Inc. needs updated Motion 

to confirm authorized signatures for the LCRA. Leible made a motion that any two (2) of the current 

LCRA commissioners, Dan Marshall, Matt Wright, John Leible, Michael Harris and Agnes Mason are 

authorized to handle the financial affairs of the LCRA including signing checks, opening and closing 

deposit accounts and other financial duties required for the daily operation of the LCRA. Further, the 

LCRA understands that financial institutions do not honor two signature requests to authorize checks. 

Harris seconded the Motion. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

D. Jay Lancaster informed the Board of additional LCRA owned lots needing to cleared and cleaned up 

and the City could proceed with bids received to clear and clean up additional lots. Jay asked the Board 

for possible additional funds to supplement prior LCRA payments to assist in the clean-up City and 

LCRA owned lots. Leible made a motion for LCRA to give the City of Sikeston an additional $20,000.00 

to assist the City in cleaning up City and LCRA owned lots and to proceed immediately with soliciting 

bids and getting contracts as approved by Jay Lancaster. Harris seconded the Motion. Motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

E. Lorenzo Ware updated the Board on the progress of the Ruth Street Compound. Discussion only. No 

vote.  

 

 

   VI.    ADJOURNMENT:  

 

         The next LCRA meeting will be on Tuesday, January 22, 2019 at 11:30 a.m. in the Council 

Chambers.  There being no further business to come before the Committee, a motion was made to 

adjourn.  The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.  The meeting was adjourned at 12:48 p.m.  

 

 

 

 

_________________________________  ________________________________ 

Angie Keller, Administrative Assistant  Dan Marshall, Chairman 



 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Sikeston Public Library 

Board of Trustees Meeting  

Monday, December 3, 2018 

4:30pm 
 

The Board of Trustees of Sikeston Public Library met at 4:30 p.m. on Monday, December 3, 

2018, in the McAmis Community Room of the Sikeston Public Library. Present were 

Dorothy Brown, Libby Caskey, Susanne Chitwood, Greg Colwick, Jay Leible, and Trevor 

Miller; and Ron Eifert, Director. Paulette Boardman, Carolyn Harris, and Lisa Lawson were 

absent. 

 

The meeting was called to order at 4:35 p.m. by vice president Greg Colwick. 

 

MINUTES 

Mrs. Caskey made the motion to approve the minutes of the November 5, 2018 meeting. 

Mrs. Brown seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 

 

PETTY CASH 

Mr. Miller made a motion to accept the Petty Cash Report for November 2018. Mr. Leible 

seconded and the motion carried. 

 

BILLS 

Mrs. Brown made a motion to accept the bills for November 2018 as presented.  Mrs. Caskey 

seconded and the motion carried. 

 

CITY FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

The city financial statement for October 2018 was reviewed. 

  

COMMITTEES 

FINANCE—An increase to the Missouri minimum wage to $8.60 was approved by the 

voters and will be effective January 1, 2019. Government entities are exempt from the 

minimum wage increases, which will reach $12.00 per hour in 2023, but it will make it 

difficult to compete for quality employees. 

 

PERSONNEL—Mr. Eifert reported on several staffing changes that are occurring. Caron 

Ryan will be leaving her position as circulation clerk effective December 21. Tanya Odle 

will move from part-time circulation clerk to full time circulation clerk effective December 

23. Lynda Muench will move from shelver to part-time circulation clerk as soon as a new 

shelver is hired. 

 



 

OPERATIONS—No report. 

 

LIBRARIAN’S REPORT 

 Fine Free Weeks will be held from December 1-15. Patrons have the opportunity to 

return overdue items with a non-perishable food item to have the fine forgiven on the 

item.   

  

 Mr. Eifert presented an estimate to purchase wooden book shelving from Missouri 

Vocational Enterprises. Each shelving unit costs $1,336. The library would need to 

purchase one, three, or five units for balance. Mr. Eifert shared some of the 

challenges the library staff faces with shelving existing books and purchasing new 

books for the collection due to a lack of space. Mrs. Caskey moved to authorize the 

purchase of three new shelving units. Mrs. Chitwood seconded the motion, which 

passed unanimously. 

 

 The library recently received its first site visit from the New Orleans Passport 

Acceptance Office. During the two-hour visit, library staff members who serve as 

passport acceptance agents were quizzed on the proper procedures for processing 

passports, and the library’s recordkeeping procedures were inspected. The library 

passed with no recommendations for correction. 

 

 Following board policy, the library will be closed on December 24-25, 2018; 

December 31, 2018; and January 1, 2019. Mr. Eifert asked for permission to close the 

library for 90 minutes over a lunch period for the staff’s annual Christmas luncheon.  

 

 Board member Paulette Boardman has had another health setback and is in the 

Sikeston Convalescent Center. Board members asked Mr. Eifert to send flowers to 

her from the board and staff of the library. 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Mrs. Caskey made a motion to adjourn. Mr. Leible seconded and the motion carried.  The 

meeting adjourned at 5:05 pm. 

 



 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Sikeston Public Library 

Board of Trustees Meeting  

Monday, January 7, 2019 

4:30pm 
 

The Board of Trustees of Sikeston Public Library met at 4:30 p.m. on Monday, January 7, 

2019, in the Draughon Community Room of the Sikeston Public Library. Present were 

Dorothy Brown, Libby Caskey, Susanne Chitwood, Greg Colwick, Carolyn Harris, Lisa 

Lawson, Jay Leible, and Trevor Miller; Karen Evans, city council liaison; and Ron Eifert, 

Director. 

 

The meeting was called to order at 4:30 p.m. by president Susanne Chitwood. 

 

MINUTES 

Mrs. Brown made the motion to approve the minutes of the December 3, 2018 meeting. Mrs. 

Caskey seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 

 

PETTY CASH 

Mr. Leible made a motion to accept the Petty Cash Report for December 2018. Mrs. Lawson 

seconded and the motion carried. 

 

BILLS 

Mrs. Caskey made a motion to accept the bills for December 2018 as presented.  Mr. Miller 

seconded and the motion carried. 

 

CITY FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

The city financial statement for November 2018 was reviewed. 

  

COMMITTEES 

FINANCE—Mr. Eifert presented a proposed schedule of raises in response to the minimum 

wage increase. Mrs. Caskey made a motion to adopt the raises as presented. Mrs. Brown 

seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 

 

PERSONNEL—The library will begin advertising for a part-time shelver during the month 

of January. 

 

OPERATIONS—Bids for the replacement of the platform lift in the lobby will be received 

and opened at 2 p.m. on Monday, February 4 in the McAmis Room. A pre-bid meeting with 

any interested contractors will be held at 2 p.m. on Wednesday, January 23 in the McAmis 



 

Room. Mrs. Caskey said that she could attend the pre-bid meeting, and Mr. Colwick said that 

he could attend the bid opening. The bids will be considered at the February meeting. 

 

LIBRARIAN’S REPORT 

 Fine Free Weeks were held from December 1-15. Patrons returned 34 items, saving 

$76.70 in fines.   

  

 A vacancy exists on the Board of Trustees following the passing of Paulette 

Boardman. According to city hall, the Board has the option to fill the opening until 

June 30, 2019, when Mrs. Boardman’s term would have expired, or to fill the opening 

when regular board appointments are made in May. Mr. Colwick moved that the 

board wait until the time when someone can be appointed to a full term. Mr. Miller 

seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 

 

 Mr. Eifert told the board that he would like to add taking passport photographs to the 

services provided by the library. Since the library has started processing passport 

applications, there are fewer businesses providing photographs, and the quality varies. 

The board expressed no objection to adding the service. 

 

 The library will again serve as a site for the AARP Tax Aide program. Trained 

volunteers will be at the library on Thursday afternoons from 12:30-4 p.m. beginning 

January 31, 2019. 

 

 Mr. Eifert reported that he has the opportunity to serve as a presenter at the Evergreen 

International Conference in Valley Forge, PA, from April 25-27. 

 

 The library has had a request to have storytimes with a trained therapy dog. There 

were no objections, and Mr. Eifert will follow up on the program. 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Mrs. Caskey made a motion to adjourn. Mrs. Harris seconded and the motion carried.  The 

meeting adjourned at 5:05 pm. 

 



Planning and Zoning Minutes 
January 15, 2019 
Sikeston City Hall 

4:00 p.m. - Meeting  
 
Roll Call: 
 
Members Present: Hancock, Jones (late), Marshall, Miller, Ozment, Self, Sutton, Thornton, 

and Winders (late) 
 
Absent Members: Gilmore and Teachout 
 
Other Staff Members Present: Jay Lancaster- Director of Public Works 
   Angie Keller- Administrative Assistant 
   Bruce Copeland- Sr. Building Official 
   Chuck Leible- City Counselor  
   Lorenzo Ware, Sr. - Code Enforcement Manager 
   Jonathan Douglass- City Manager 
            
Guests:  Lue Ann Spence, Berverly Hollis, Jerry Freshour, Matt Marshall, Rese Johnson, 

Jesse Lare, Levar Buxton, Helen Buxton, Eric Williamson, Emory McCauley, 
Janice Gibson, and Mary White-Ross 

 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
 
Minutes of the November 13, 2018 meeting were presented for approval.  A motion was 
made by Thornton to approve the minutes as presented. Marshall seconded the motion.  
Roll call vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: Hancock, Marshall, Miller, Ozment, Self, Sutton and Thornton 
 
Nays: None 
 
Motion Passed 7- 0 
 
 
 

ITEMS OF BUSINESS: 
 
A Request from the City of Sikeston to discuss a Comprehensive Plan Amendment 
 
After discussion, a motion was made by Thornton to approve the City’s request to amend 
the Comprehensive Plan as presented. Sutton seconded the motion. Roll call vote was as 
follows: 
 
Ayes: Hancock, Marshall, Miller, Ozment, Self, Sutton and Thornton 
 
Nays:   None 
 
Motion Passed: 7 – 0 



A Request from the City of Sikeston to Rezone the South Industrial Park Property 
from unzoned to Heavy Industrial “IH” 
 
After discussion, a motion was made by Thornton to approve the City’s request to rezone 
the South Industrial Park property from unzoned to Heavy Industrial “IH”. Miller seconded 
the motion. Roll call vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: Hancock, Marshall, Miller, Ozment, Self, Sutton and Thornton 
 
Nays:   None 
 
Motion Passed: 7 – 0 
 
A Request from the City of Sikeston to Rezone 25 properties located in the Sunset 
and Lincoln Subdivisions from “IL” Light Industrial to “C3” Highway Commercial.  
 
After discussion, a motion was made by Marshall to approve the City’s request to rezone 25 
properties located in the Sunset and Lincoln Subdivisions from “IL” Light Industrial to “C3” 
Highway Commercial. Sutton seconded the motion. Roll call vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: Hancock, Jones, Marshall, Miller, Ozment, Self, Sutton and Thornton 
 
Nays:   None 
 
Motion Passed: 8 – 0 
 
 
Adjournment:  There being no further business, a motion was made by Thornton to close 
the public hearing and adjourn.  The motion was seconded by Self. The motion was carried 
by unanimous vote.  The meeting adjourned. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted by:     Attested by: 
 
 
_____________________________   ___________________________  
Angie Keller, Administrative Assistant   Gary Ozment, Chairman 



1 

Council Letter 
 

 
Council Letter:  19-03-04 

  
Originating Department:   Department of Governmental Services 
 
To the Mayor and City Council: 
 
Subject:  Interim Appointment to Housing Authority Board 
 
Action Options: 

1. Make interim appointment for term ending September 2020  
2. Other action as Council may deem appropriate 

 
Background: 
  
On February 25, 2019 staff received notification from Kathy Teachout of her resignation 
from the Housing Authority Board of Commissioners.  Mrs. Teachout was serving her first 
term, ending in September 2020.  
 
Our Resource Bank currently has one application on file which belongs to Mike Jensen.  
 
Staff is requesting Council proceed with the interim appointment to the Housing Authority 
Board.  Current Commission members are John Leible, Harry Howard, Gordon Waller and 
Housing Authority Resident Representative Alice Tharp. 

  
City of Sikeston 



1 

 

Council Letter 
 

 
Date of Meeting:   19-03-04 
  
Originating Department:  Public Works Department 
 
To the Mayor and City Council:   
 
Subject:   2nd Reading, Bill #6134, Authorization to Rezone (Copeland Estates) 
  
Attachment(s): 

 
1. Bill #6134 

 
2. Plat 

 
Action Options:     
 
1. Conduct 2nd Reading and approve request 
 
2. Other action Council may deem appropriate 
 
Background:     
 
This is a request to rezone a tract of land which consists of approximately 3.0 acres and is 
generally located west of the Burlington Northern Railroad, east of North West Street, and north 
of Salcedo Road from Agriculture “AG” to Single Family Residential “R-1”, in the City of 
Sikeston, Scott County, Missouri. 
 
Council read this the first time on February 25, 2019 and unless there are further questions from 
the Council or the public, staff recommends that Council approve the request. 
 

 
 

 

City of Sikeston 



BILL Number 6134                                                     ORDINANCE Number 6134 
 
 

 - 1 - 

THIS BILL AS APPROVED SHALL BECOME ORDINANCE NUMBER 6134 PROVIDING FOR THE 
REZONING FROM AGRICULTURE “AG” TO SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL “R-1” THE 
FOLLOWING DESCRIBED REAL ESTATE TO-WIT: A TRACT OF LAND, WHICH CONSISTS OF 
APPROXIMATELY 3.0 ACRES AND IS LOCATED GENERALLY WEST OF THE BURLINGTON 
NORTHERN RAILROAD, EAST OF NORTH WEST STREET, AND NORTH OF SALCEDO ROAD, 
IN THE CITY OF SIKESTON, SCOTT COUNTY, MISSOURI. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIKESTON, MISSOURI AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION I:  This Ordinance shall not be codified in the City Municipal Code. 
 
SECTION II: The Planning and Zoning Commission met on February 12, 2019 and voted to approve the 
rezoning from Agriculture “AG” to Single Family Residential “R-1” the following described real estate to-
wit: A tract of land, which consists of approximately 3.0 acres and is located generally west of the 
Burlington Northern Railroad, east of North West Street, and north of Salcedo Road, in the City of 
Sikeston, Scott County, Missouri and incorporated by reference and legally described as follow: 
 
“A TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND LYING AND BEING A PART OF THE SOUTH HALF OF SECTION 
13, TOWNSHIP 26 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST, OF THE FIFTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, SCOTT 
COUNTY, MISSOURI AND BEING MORE FULLY DESCRIBED BY METES AND BOUNDS AS 
FOLLOWS:  COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 12 IN BLOCK 5 IN 
CLEARVIEW ESTATES SUBDIVISION SECOND ADDITION TO THE CITY OF SIKESTON, SCOTT 
COUNTY, MISSOURI AS RECORDED ON PAGE 40, PLAT BOOK 13 IN THE OFFICE OF THE 
RECORDER OF DEEDS FOR SCOTT COUNTY, MISSOURI; THENCE NORTH 150 FEET TO A 
POINT; THENCE EAST 9.28 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 60 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING; THENCE N.30°00'00"E. A DISTANCE OF 331.35 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE 
N.18°28'00"W. A DISTANCE OF 186.99 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE N.71°37'00"E. A DISTANCE OF 
180.05 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF BURLINGTON NORTHERN 
RAILROAD; THENCE S.18°23'00"E. ON AND ALONG THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 
BURLINGTON NORTHERN RAILROAD A DISTANCE OF 549.12 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE WEST 
A DISTANCE OF 450.48 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  CONTAINING IN ALL 3.00 ACRES, 
MORE OR LESS.  SUBJECT TO ALL EASEMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE SAME”.   
   
SECTION III: A plat of said real estate is marked as Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated by 
reference. 
 
SECTION IV:  The above tract of land is hereby rezoned from “AG” Agriculture to “R-1” Single 
Family Residential. 
 
SECTION V:  General Repealer Section: Any other ordinance or parts thereof inconsistent herewith, 
are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION VI:  Severability: Should any part or parts of this ordinance be found or held to be invalid 
by any court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining part or parts shall be severable and shall 
continue in full force and effect. 
 
SECTION VII:  Record of Passage 
 
A. Bill Number 6134 was introduced and read the first time this 25th day of February 2019.  
 
B. Bill Number 6134 was read the second time and discussed this 4th day of March 2019 and 

was voted as follows: 
 

Self                     , White-Ross                         , Evans                       ,  
Settles _________, Meredith                         , Gilmore                         ,  

and Burch                            ,  
 

thereby being                            , and becoming ordinance 6134. 
  

C. Ordinance 6134 shall be in full force and effect from and after Wednesday, April 3, 2019. 
    
 

             
      Steven Burch, Mayor 

       
 Approved as to form    
 Charles Leible, City Counselor   
       Seal / Attest: 
 
             

   Carroll Couch, City Clerk 



BILL Number 6134                                                     ORDINANCE Number 6134 
 
 

 - 2 - 

 
Exhibit “A” 

 

 



1 

 

Council Letter 
 

 
Date of Meeting:   19-03-04 
  
Originating Department:  Public Works Department 
 
To the Mayor and City Council:   
 
Subject:   2nd Reading, Bill # 6135, Subdivision Request, “Copeland Estates” 
  
Attachment(s): 

 
1. Bill # 6135 

 
2. Plat 

 
Action Options:     
 
1. Conduct 2nd Reading and approve request 

 
2. Other action Council may deem appropriate 
 
Background:     
 
This is the request from Lambert Engineering on behalf of G Copeland Enterprises, LLC for the 
approval of a proposed subdivision (Wing Lake Estates, 3rd Addition) which consists of 
approximately 3.0 acres and is generally located west of the Burlington Northern Railroad, east 
of North West Street, and north of Salcedo Road, in the City of Sikeston, Scott County, Missouri. 
 
 
Council read this the first time on February 25, 2019 and unless there are further questions from 
the Council or the public, staff recommends that Council approve the request. 
 
 

 
 

 

City of Sikeston 



BILL Number 6135                                                  ORDINANCE Number 6135 

 - 1 - 

 
THIS BILL AS APPROVED SHALL BECOME ORDINANCE NUMBER 6135 PROVIDING FOR 
APPROVAL OF SUBDIVIDING A 3.0 ACRE TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND BEING KNOWN AS 
COPELAND ESTATES, IN THE CITY OF SIKESTON, SCOTT COUNTY, MISSOURI, AND WHICH 
GENERALLY LIES WEST OF THE BURLINGTON NORTHERN RAILROAD, EAST OF NORTH 
WEST STREET, AND NORTH OF SALCEDO ROAD.  
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIKESTON, MISSOURI AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION I:  This Ordinance shall not be codified in the City Municipal Code. 
 
SECTION II: The Planning and Zoning Commission met on February 12, 2019 and passed a 
favorable recommendation to approve the subdividing of a tract or parcel of land the plat of which is 
attached hereto, marked Exhibit “A” and incorporated by reference and legally described as follows 
and known as Copeland Estates: 
 
“A TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND LYING AND BEING A PART OF THE SOUTH HALF OF 
SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 26 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST, OF THE FIFTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, 
SCOTT COUNTY, MISSOURI AND BEING MORE FULLY DESCRIBED BY METES AND BOUNDS 
AS FOLLOWS:  COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 12 IN BLOCK 5 IN 
CLEARVIEW ESTATES SUBDIVISION SECOND ADDITION TO THE CITY OF SIKESTON, 
SCOTT COUNTY, MISSOURI AS RECORDED ON PAGE 40, PLAT BOOK 13 IN THE OFFICE OF 
THE RECORDER OF DEEDS FOR SCOTT COUNTY, MISSOURI; THENCE NORTH 150 FEET 
TO A POINT; THENCE EAST 9.28 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 60 FEET TO THE POINT 
OF BEGINNING; THENCE N.30°00'00"E. A DISTANCE OF 331.35 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE 
N.18°28'00"W. A DISTANCE OF 186.99 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE N.71°37'00"E. A DISTANCE 
OF 180.05 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF BURLINGTON 
NORTHERN RAILROAD; THENCE S.18°23'00"E. ON AND ALONG THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY 
LINE OF BURLINGTON NORTHERN RAILROAD A DISTANCE OF 549.12 FEET TO A POINT; 
THENCE WEST A DISTANCE OF 450.48 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  CONTAINING 
IN ALL 3.00 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.  SUBJECT TO ALL EASEMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING 
THE SAME”.   
   
SECTION III: Said plat and subdivision is accepted and approved subject to full compliance with all 
applicable building and other codes and the stormwater management plan.  
 
SECTION IV:  General Repealer Section: Any other ordinance or parts thereof inconsistent 
herewith, are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION V:  Severability: Should any part or parts of this ordinance be found or held to be invalid 
by any court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining part or parts shall be severable and shall 
continue in full force and effect. 
 
SECTION VI:  Record of Passage 
 
A. Bill Number 6135 was introduced and read the first time this 25th day of February 2019. 
 
B. Bill Number 6135 was read the second time and discussed this 4th day of February 2019 

and voted as follows: 
 

Meredith,                     , Self,                        , Settles,                      , 
 

Evans,                          , White-Ross,                         , Gilmore,                         , 
 

Burch,                            , thereby being 
 

thereby being _______________, and becoming ordinance 6135. 
 
C. Ordinance 6135 shall be in full force and effect from and after Wednesday, April 3, 2019. 

 
      

      Steven Burch, Mayor 
 
      

 Approved as to form     
 Charles Leible, City Counselor  Seal / Attest 
 
            
       Carroll Couch, City Clerk 



BILL Number 6135                                                  ORDINANCE Number 6135 

 - 2 - 

 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

 

 

 



1 

 

Council Letter 
 

 
Date of Meeting:   19-03-04 
  
Originating Department:  Public Works Department 
 
To the Mayor and City Council:   
 
Subject:   1st and 2nd Reading of Emergency Bill #6138, Authorizing the Mayor to Sign MoDOT 
Cost Share Program Documents for the South Ingram Interchange Project 
  
Attachment(s): 

 
1. Bill # 6138 

 
Action Options:     
 

1. 1st and 2nd Readings and consideration on Emergency Bill #6070, Authorizing the Mayor 
to Sign MoDOT Cost Share Program Documents for the South Ingram Interchange 
Project 
 

2. Other action Council may deem appropriate 
 
Background:     
 
Staff is currently working with MoDOT representatives to prepare a cost share application, and 
potentially a Missouri Transportation Finance Corporation application for the Proposed South 
Ingram Interchange project.  MoDOT requires that the mayor sign all the pertinent documents 
including, but not limited to, Cost Share Application, MTFC Application, Program Agreements, 
etc.  They also require that the City Council pass an ordinance authorizing the Mayor to sign 
these documents.  This ordinance authorizes the mayor to sign all pertinent documents to this 
project. 
 

 
 

 

City of Sikeston 



Bill No.  6138                                                      Ordinance No.  6138 
 
THIS BILL AS APPROVED SHALL BECOME EMERGENCY ORDINANCE NUMBER 6138 AUTHORIZING THE 
MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE SOUTH INGRAM INTERCHANGE PROJECT #J9P3584 INCLUDING, BUT NOT 
LIMITED TO: COST SHARE APPLICATION, MISSOURI TRANSPORTATION FINANCE CORPORATION 
APPLICATION AND PROGRAM AGREEMENTS WITH THE MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATION 
COMMISSION.  
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIKESTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION I:  This Ordinance shall not be codified in the City Municipal Code. 
 
SECTION II:  Authorization of Documents.   The City is hereby authorized to enter into the following documents (the 
“City Documents”), in substantially the form presented to the City Council and attached to this Ordinance, with such 
changes therein as are approved by the officials of the City executing the documents, such officials’ signatures 
thereon being conclusive evidence of their approval thereof: 

(a) Cost Share Application; 
(b) Missouri Transportation Finance Corporation Application & Program Agreements. 

 
SECTION III:     Execution of Documents.  The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the City Documents and such 
other documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the 
intent of this Ordinance, for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the City.  The City Clerk is hereby authorized 
to attest to and affix the seal of the City to the City Documents and such other documents, certificates and 
instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this Ordinance. 
 
SECTION IV.      Further Authority.   The City shall, and the officials, agents and employees of the City are hereby 
authorized to, take such further action, and execute such other documents, certificates and instruments as may be 
necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this Ordinance and to carry out, comply with and 
perform the duties of the City with respect to the City Documents.  
 
SECTION V:  General Repealer Section.  Any ordinance or parts thereof inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION VI:  Severability.  Should any part or parts of this ordinance be found or held to be invalid by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, the remaining part or parts shall be severable and shall continue in full force and effect. 
 
SECTION VII:  Emergency Clause.  This Ordinance is adopted as an emergency measure to comply with Missouri 
Highways and Transportation Commission timeline requirements. 
 
SECTION VIII:  Record of Passage: 
A. Bill Number 6138 was introduced to Council and read the first time this 4th day of March 2019. 
 
B. Bill Number 6138 was read the second time this 4th day of March, 2019, discussed and was voted as follows: 
 

Self                   ,   Evans                   , Settles                     , 
 

Merideth   , White-Ross                , Gilmore   , 
   
  and Burch                                 

 
thereby being    , 
 
     becoming Ordinance 6138.                                         

 
C. Upon passage by a majority of the Council, this Bill shall become Ordinance 6138 and shall be in full force and 

effect. 
    
               
       Steven Burch, Mayor 
                                    
___________________________  
Approved as to Form 
Charles Leible, City Counselor 
 
 
SEAL/ATTEST: 
 
 
 
        
Carroll Couch, City Clerk 
 
 



 

Council Letter 
 

Date of Meeting:   19-03-04 
  
Originating Department:  Public Works Department 
 
To the Mayor and City Council:   
 
Subject:   Award, Bid #19-37, CY-18 Street Improvement Program- Lambert Engineering, Inc. 
 
Attachments: 
 

1. Bid Tabulation Sheet 
2. Engineer’s Recommendation Letter 

 
Action Options:     
 

1. Award Bid 
2. Other Action Council May Deem Necessary 

 
Background:   
 
On Tuesday (2/26/19) staff opened bids for project #19-37 for street and drainage 
improvements utilizing Lambert Engineering and Surveying for consultant services.  There were 
two bids submitted.  The low bidder for the base bid was Apex Paving with a low bid of 
$372,601.83.  There was also one Bid Alternate for additional paving for $42,195.67. 
 
We are recommending award of project 19-37 to Apex Paving Company of Cape Girardeau for 
the base low bid of $372,601.83.  We further would request authorization from Council to award 
the Alternate Bid #1 for additional paving in the amount of $42,195.67 should additional funds 
become available. 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 

City of Sikeston 







 

Council Letter 
 

Date of Meeting:   19-03-04 
  
Originating Department:  Public Works Department 
 
To the Mayor and City Council:   
 
Subject:   Award, Bids #19-38, 19-39 and 19-40, CY-19 Street Improvement Program- Waters 
Engineering 
 
Attachments: 
 

1. Bid Tabulation Sheet (3 Each) 
2. Engineer’s Recommendation Letter (3 Each) 

 
Action Options:     
 

1. Award Bid 
2. Other Action Council May Deem Necessary 

 
Background:   
 
On Tuesday (2/26/19) staff opened bids on three street and drainage projects with the 
assistance of civil engineering consultant Waters Engineering.  We request authorization to 
award the projects per the itemized list below. 
 
Project 19-38:  Asphalt Paving (Southland, North West, Euclid) 
There were four bidders on the project.  Staff is recommending award of the milling and overlay 
of North West and Southland.  Euclid was supposed to be an alternate.  We will be deducting it 
due to budgetary reasons.  We request authorization to award this project to Chester Bross 
Construction with a low bid of $253,296.00.  With this request we also are requesting the 
approval of Change Order #1 for a deduction of $113,045.00 for the removal of Euclid.  This will 
result in a contract total of $140,251.00. 
 
Project 19-39:  Moore Avenue Pavement Improvements 
There were a total of seven (7) bids opened for this project.  The low bidder was Fronabarger 
Concreters from Oak Ridge, MO with a low bid of $83,637.05.  We request authorization to 
award project 19-39 to Fronabarger Concreters. 
 
Project 19-40:  Davis Boulevard and Hackberry Drainage Improvements 
There were a total of seven (7) bids opened for this project.  This project was bid with a base bid 
plus two alternates.  The base bid was for work on Davis Boulevard South of Station 32+33.5.  
The first alternate was to finish the Davis Boulevard drainage work and proceed north of Station 
32+33.5 all the way to the low point north of Wakefield Avenue.  The 2nd alternate was for some 
drainage work near Hackberry and Salcedo Road.  First, let me say that completing the Davis  

 
 

 

City of Sikeston 



 Page 2 

 

 
 
Boulevard drainage project is a priority for staff.  And second, we were not able to rework the 
Hackberry drainage issue as we hoped, so we are not prepared to move forward on this aspect 
until we can have further discussion with MoDOT and consulting engineers.  For that reason, we 
request the authorization to award the Base Bid AND Bid Alternate #1 for Project 19-40 to 
Kluesner Concreters of Kelso with a base bid of $127,530.00 plus the alternate bid of 
$48,444.75 for a total bid of $175,974.75.  This is further explained in the letter from Waters 
Engineering. 

 

















1 

 

Council Letter 
 

 
Date of Meeting:   19-03-04 
  
Originating Department:  Public Works Department 
 
To the Mayor and City Council:   
 
Subject:   Authorization to Advertise for Bids for Repairs to Lil Peddler building. 
  
Attachment(s): 

 
1. Letter from Rob Murphy, Architect  

 
Action Options:     
 

1. Authorize Staff to seek bids for repairs 
 

2. Other action Council may deem appropriate 
 
Background:     
 
Staff is requesting City Council approval to advertise for bids for repairs to the north wall of the 
Lil Peddler building located at 104 E Front Street.  Staff has plans available should any council 
members wish to review the plans.  The current plan includes removing the existing wall and 
replacing it with a concrete masonry unit (CMU aka Concrete Block) wall with a single with brick 
veneer utilizing new brick.  At this point, we do not see it feasible (both from an engineering and 
a financial perspective) to save the existing brick.  This is further explained in the attached letter 
from the architect. 
 

 
 

 

City of Sikeston 
















	Agenda
	Council MInutes
	Board & Commission Minutes
	Interim Appointment to Housing Authority Board
	2nd Reading, Bill #6134, Rezone Copeland Estates
	2nd Reading, Bill #6135, Copeland Estates Subdivision
	1st & 2nd Reading, Bill #6138, MoDOT Cost-Share Application for Ingram Interchange
	Award Bid 19-37, Lambert Engineering CY19 Street Improvement Program
	Award Bid 19-38, 19-39 & 19-40 - Waters Engineering CY19 Street Improvement Program
	Advertise for Bids - Repairs to Lil Peddler Building
	Reports
	Meeting Calendar

